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INTRODUCTION 

  This ERISA class action for the denial of vested pension benefits from a 

defined benefit plan began well over four years ago with the filing of a complaint 

in the Northern District of Alabama, Middle Division.  [R 1].  After defendants 

abused their discretion ab initio by filing a fraudulently identified plan document 

with their motion to dismiss plaintiff amended his complaint seeking “equitable 

relief” in his individual, representative and derivative capacity on behalf of a 

putative class and the plan.1 [R 35].  Defendants insisted on a limited initial hearing 

admitting that plaintiff was vested if he had 1000 hours of service in 1972 under 

the prior vesting schedule.  [R 101 at 12:2 to 7].  The district court in the first 

instance, Judge Propst, found by applying a heightened arbitrary and capricious 

standard of review, that Mr. Gilley was a participant with a vested pension benefit 

and because of the conflict of interest the decision to deny him his benefit was 

unreasonable and awarded him his accrued benefit.  [R 116-7].  This Court 

reversed considering Mr. Gilley’s claim for “equitable relief” for abuse of 

discretion and statutory violation as a de facto discretionary claim for benefits 

                                                 
1 Instead of providing the actual 1976 plan document as requested by Mr. Gilley 
during the administrative appeal defendants provided a draft copy of the plan 
showing future amendments including the 95 Hour equivalency, which was not 
formally adopted until 1982 and defendants filed this same fraudulently identified 
document along with their motion to dismiss.  [R 1, 8, 13-4, 35]. 
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under 502(a)(1)(B) applying an arbitrary and capricious standard of review.  Gilley 

v. Monsanto Company, Inc., 490 F.3d 848, 856-60 (11 Cir. 2007)(Gilley I).   

ARGUMENT 
 
I. The District Court Erred by Denying Class Certification, Bifurcating the 
Issues to be Heard, Applying a Deferential Standard Of Review Treating All 
Claims As A Single Benefit Decision, and Dismissing for Lack of Standing 
Creating an Irreversible and Irrebutable Presumption of the Correctness of 
the Denial of Vested Pension Benefits by a Plan Sponsor in its Profit Interest 
Despite A Clear Abuse Of Discretion And A Tainted Unreasonable Benefit 
Decision.  
 

  A. Standard of Review Gilley v. Monsanto Company, Inc. 

  On appeal this Court assumed the non-reversionary trust insulates the 

fiduciary from implications of the conflict of interest and any possible abuse of 

discretion and applying the highest deferential standard of review possible reversed 

the district court’s finding in favor of the former employee remanding with 

instructions to consider Mr. Gilley’s remaining claims for breach of fiduciary duty, 

discrimination, and intentional interference with protected benefits.  Gilley, 490 

F.3d at 856-60.  In Gilley I this Court assumed, despite the lower court’s finding of 

a tainted unreasonable benefit decision as a result of the conflict of interest, that a 

fiduciary’s benefit decision was sacrosanct if the sponsor maintains a non-

reversionary trust.  Gilley, 490 F.3d at 857 (finding the district court erred in 

applying a heightened arbitrary and capricious standard and finding the district 

court in the first instance committed clear error and abused its discretion by 
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awarding equitable relief).  This Court relying on Buckley v. Metropolitan Life held 

“a non-reversionary, periodic trust ‘eradicates any alleged conflict of interest so 

that the arbitrary or capricious standard of review applies’".  Id. citing Buckley v. 

Metropolitan Life, 115 F.3d 936, 939-40 (11 Cir. 1997) and Turner v. Delta 

Family-Care Disability & Survivorship Plan, 291 F.3d 1270, 1273 (11th Cir.2002).  

To conclude as it did this Court in Gilley relying on Buckley and Turner assumed: 

1) the plan has always been operated as a qualified plan entitling the administrator 

to discretion; 2) there has not been any substantial ERISA violations threatening 

the integrity of the plan; 3) the fiduciary has not abused its discretion; 4) plaintiff’s 

individual claim for “equitable relief” under ERISA § 502(a)(3) for an admitted 

breach of fiduciary duty is in fact a de facto discretionary claim for benefits; 5) 

benefits for all participants are paid from the non-reversionary trust; 6) the trust has 

been fully funded to ERISA standards, and; 7) the plan administrator’s decision 

cannot benefit the sponsor financially.  Taking these assumptions to be 

presumptively correct the Court relied on the fiduciary’s deference taking 

defendants’ factual and legal determinations as presented to be true.  Gilley, 490 

F.3d 848, 856-7)(applying the William v. Bellsouth Telecommunications, 

Incorporated six-step review process as if Mr. Gilley’s claim for “equitable relief” 

for abuse of discretion and violation of ERISA was a de facto discretionary claim 

for benefits and finding “no conflict of interest exists where benefits are paid from 
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a trust that is funded through periodic contributions so that the provider incurs no 

immediate expense as a result of paying benefits”); Firestone Tire & Rubber Co. v. 

Bruch, 489 U.S. 101 (1989); Williams v. BellSouth Telecomms., Inc., 373 F.3d 

1132, 1135 n. 3 (11th Cir.2004).   

  B.  Standing Based On “Colorable” Claim 

  At the end of 1980 in the event of a “layoff” Mr. Gilley and other “working 

class” participants fulfilled their contractual commitment to their employer 

providing services for the requisite period of time under the 1976 amendment 

entitling them to 100 percent of their accrued benefit, i.e. deferred compensation, 

derived from their employer’s contribution to an alleged trust.  ERISA §§ 

203(c)(1)(A) & (B); 203(a)(3)(C); see also [R 101 at 12:2 to 7].  A few months 

later Monsanto closed the plant placing nearly six hundred employees on “layoff” 

for one year with a three year call back period. [R 169-8].  Mr. Gilley was 

informed both orally and in writing that he was entitled to his separated deferred 

vested benefit.  [R 1, 35].  Mr. Gilley would not learn of Monsanto’s decision to 

amend the plan and deny him his vested benefit until twenty two years later. Id. 

 Eight years after the Sand Mountain plant closed the Supreme Court in 

Firestone v. Bruch addressed two key concerns over ERISA’s enforcement 

procedures; what standard of review applies for claims brought under ERISA § 

502(a)(1)(B) and who is a participant within the meaning of ERISA to bring suit.  
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Firestone Tire & Rubber Co. v. Bruch, 489 U.S. 101, 102 (1989).  The Supreme 

Court established the now familiar three-tier standard of review for discretionary 

claims for benefits under the terms of the plan expressing no view as to the 

standard of review under other remedial provisions of ERISA.  Id. at 106.  The 

Supreme Court in Firestone held that a former employee who has a “colorable” 

claim for vested benefits is a participant.  Firestone, 480 U.S. at 110.    

  On remand after Gilley I the district court, Judge Smith, found Mr. Gilley 

did not have standing to challenge the provider’s abuse of discretion and breach of 

fiduciary duty, discrimination, and intentional interference with protect rights and 

benefits because he was not vested.  [R 194].  The district court in the second 

instance read Firestone to reject the notion that ERISA “should be read to mean 

that a civil action may be brought by someone who claims to be a participant,” and 

found that such an “interpretation of the term ‘participant’ . . . strays far from the 

statutory language.” Firestone, 489 U.S. at 117 (emphasis supplied). “To say that a 

‘participant’ is any person who claims to be one begs the question of who is a 

‘participant’ and renders the definition set forth in § 1002(7) superfluous.” Id. 

In our view, the term ‘participant’ is naturally read to mean either 
‘employees in, or reasonably expected to be in, currently covered 
employment,’ Saladino v. I.L.G.W.U. National Retirement Fund, 754 
F.2d 473, 476 (2nd Cir. 1985), or former employees who ‘have . . . a 
reasonable expectation of returning to covered employment’ or who 
have ‘a colorable claim’ to vested benefits. Kuntz v. Reese, 785 F.2d 
1410, 1411 (9th Cir. 1986) [(abrogated by Kayes v. Pacific Lumber 
Co., 51 F.3d 1449 (9th Cir. 1995)].   
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Id. (emphasis supplied).  [R 194]. 

 
Relying on these statements by the Court the district court on remand without 

addressing the original evidence or any new evidence of a proven abuse of 

discretion found Mr. Gilley did not have a “colorable” claim.  Id.   

Mr. Gilley believes that permitting defendants to define who is or who is not 

vested under a highly deferential standard of review taking their factual and legal 

determinations as true begs the question of who is vested and renders ERISA 

superfluous.  Instead plaintiff is of the opinion, consistent with every other circuit 

to address the issue, that to answer the question as to whether or not a former 

employee has a “colorable” claim for benefits depends on whether or not there is a 

procedural or substantive abuse of discretion resulting from the conflict of interest 

tainting the decision process.  Smith v. Wynfield Dev. Co., 2007 WL 1654149 (11 

Cir. June 8, 2007)(finding a former employee had standing to challenge 

defendants’ misconduct for failing to enroll plaintiff in the plan); Metropolitan Life 

v. Glenn, 554 U.S. ___ *1 (2008)(“MetLIfe”).  If the conflict of interest taints the 

decision making process in the interest of the sponsor then there is an abuse of 

discretion stripping the fiduciary of discretion which in turn establishes the 

standard of review as de novo.  Varity Corp. v. Howe, 516 U.S. 489 (1996); Jones 

v. American Gen. Life and Accident Insur. Co., 370 F.3d 1065 (11th Cir. 2004). 
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  C. Metropolitan Life v. Glenn, 554 U.S. ____ (2008) 

  Gilley, Buckley, and Turner cannot be reconciled with the recent decision in 

Metropolitan Life v. Glenn, 554 U.S. ____ (2008) wherein the Supreme Court 

cautioned that all reviewing courts must consider conflicts of interest as a factor 

when reviewing benefit decisions before affording deference.  Metropolitan Life v. 

Glenn, 554 U.S. ___ *1 (2008)(“MetLIfe”).  MetLife requires reviewing courts to 

consider the effect of the conflict of interest as a factor when reviewing all benefit 

decisions before applying the Firestone/Williams analysis, and if the decision is 

tainted by the conflict and unreasonable and/or there are clear violations of 

ERISA’s mandates and/or irregularities in plan administration tainting the decision 

making process then there has been an abuse of discretion and the fiduciary’s 

factual and legal determinations are to be given no deference.  MetLife, 554 U.S. at 

* 9 (“reviewing judge to take account of the conflict when determining whether the 

trustee, substantively and procedurally, has abused his discretion); see also Doyle 

v. Liberty Life Assurance Company, No. 05-00133 ____ F.3d ____, * 13, 16 (11 

Cir. 2008).  If the fiduciary breaches his duty “to act in the sole and exclusive 

interest of the participants and beneficiaries” then there is properly a claim for 

relief under ERISA § 502(a)(2) and (3) on behalf of the plan and all similarly 

situated participants who have been adversely affected by the fiduciary’s breach.  
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Deak v. Masters, Mates & Pilots Pension Plan, 821 F.2d 572, 574 (11th Cir. 

1987).   

  This Court in Gilley v. Monsanto Company, Incorporated erroneously 

established as the law of this circuit a single deferential arbitrary and capricious 

standard of review for all ERISA defined benefit pension decisions assuming 

contrary to MetLife’s mandate there can never be an abuse of discretion.  Gilley, 

490 F.3d at 856-7 citing Buckley, 115 F.3d at 939-40.  Gilley I cannot be 

reconciled with MetLife or the law of this circuit because in the instant case the 

fiduciary was stripped of all discretion afforded under Firestone/Williams despite 

the existence of a non-reversionary trust because the fiduciary here made an end-

run around ERISA’s statutory mandates transforming the plan into a “tax free” 

shelter for deferred compensation for Monsanto’s highly compensated employees 

“HCEs”.  ERISA § 502(a)(3) and § 502(a)(2); Varity,, 516 U.S. 489; Jones, 370 

F.3d 1065(11th Cir. 2004); MetLife, 554 U.S. at * 7.   

  D. Breach of Fiduciary Duty Ab Initio 

  The Supreme Court has recognized misrepresentation of pension plans to be 

a breach of fiduciary duty and therefore a violation of ERISA § 502(a)(3).  Varity, 

516 U.S. 489 (1996).  Because defendants admittedly provided plaintiff’s counsel 

with a fraudulently identified plan document during the administrative appeal and 

filed the fraudulently identified document with a motion to dismiss to intentionally 
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conceal the existence of the 1976 amendment there was competent evidence before 

the district court in the first instance of a breach of fiduciary duty ab initio 

justifying Mr. Gilley’s 502(a)(3) claim.  [R 1, 8, 13-4].  Accordingly, because there 

was clear and competent evidence of breach of fiduciary duty ab initio the district 

court in the first instance erroneously in light of MetLife analyzed Mr. Gilley’s 

individual claim for “equitable relief” under Section 502(a)(3) as a de facto 

discretionary claim for benefits under Section 502(a)(1)(B) and the 

Firestone/Williams rubric.  [R 102 at pp. 14-5].  Mr. Gilley’s individual claims 

should have properly been considered as claims for “equitable relief” under ERISA 

§ 502(a)(3) under the de novo standard of review.   Varity, 516 U.S. at 499; [R 102 

at pp. 14-5]; see also Appellant’s Initial Brief.  Despite the fact that the district 

court erred in light of MetLife by applying a heightened deferential standard of 

review under the Firestone/Williams rubric, the same court did not err in awarding 

equitable relief based on its finding that the decision was unreasonable and tainted 

by the conflict of interest.  [R 116-7].  Although, this Court has recently said the 

heightened standard of review imposes a greater burden on fiduciaries than de 

novo review the evidence shows the district court found the conflict of interest was 

the controlling factor for the benefit decision. [R 134]; Doyle, No. 05-00133 ____ 

F.3d at *14.   Notwithstanding, there was a clear abuse of discretion ab initio and 

clear evidence the controlling factor was the conflict of interest which tainted the 
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benefit decision making it admittedly unreasonable, defendants drove this litigation 

to appeal in hopes of establishing precedent to secure forfeiture of vested accrued 

benefits belonging to other “working class” participants in the interest of HCEs.  

See Heptinstall v. Monsanto Company, Inc., CV 06-01564. 

 E.      Other Evidence Of Abuse Of Discretion Prior To Gilley I 
 
  The district court in the first instance erred by limiting the initial hearing and 

the evidence to Mr. Gilley’s hours of service in 1972 and certifying its ruling as 

final because by doing so it permitted defendants with an opportunity to 

mischaracterize Mr. Gilley’s individual claim for “equitable relief” due to an abuse 

of discretion as a discretionary denial of benefits to a sympathetic plaintiff.  By 

concealing blatant violations of ERISA’s mandates defendants hoped to legitimize 

the ex post facto amendment and avoid liability.  By establishing precedent all 

“working class” participants could be divested of their separated deferred vested 

pension benefit boosting the sponsor’s profit margin.2  Schiavo ex rel. Schindler v. 

Schiavo, 403 F.3d 1289, 1292 (11th Cir. 2005); Buce v. Allianz Life Insur. Co., 247 

F.3d 1133, 1138 (11th Cir. 2001).   

                                                 
2 Gilley v. Monsanto is the lead case in a series of cases that have been or will be 
brought by a group of similarly situated “working class” participants who have 
been denied or will be denied their fully vested accrued benefit upon reaching 
retirement age.  See Heptinstall et al. v. Monsanto Company, Inc., CV 06-CLS-
1564-M (Seven Additional Plaintiffs).   
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  Notwithstanding the district court’s error there was still ample evidence in 

the record of substantive and procedural abuse of discretion sufficient for this 

Court to have found the fiduciary was stripped of its discretion.  In addition to 

Monsanto’s attempts to conceal the 1976 amendment by filing a fraudulently 

identified plan document there was also testimony of irregularities in plan 

administration, most importantly, the plan administrator’s testimony that benefit 

decisions are made when participants apply for their benefits.  [R 101 225:1 to 

226:25; 343:8 to 343:18; 334:23 to 345:12; 352:20 to 353:2].  ERISA requires 

separated participants with a deferred vested benefit to be reported on the plan’s 

annual returns, Form 5500 Schedule SSA, at the time of termination.  See Internal 

Revenue Service Publication “IRS Pub” 794. See e.g. Combs v. King, 764 F.2d 

818, 822-3 (11 Cir. 1985)(discussing the importance of the reporting and 

disclosure rules to ERISA’s policy to ensure benefits).  The eligibility decision 

should have been made at termination.  By Monsanto’s plan administrator 

revisiting eligibility when non-HCE participants apply for benefits the 

administrator is making an end-run around ERISA’s reporting and disclosure rules.  

Id.  Accordingly, this is also a breach of fiduciary duty.   

  There was also testimony that benefit determinations are based on 

demographic information (socioeconomic factors and forum) and supporting 

material.  [R 101 251:16-23; 254:9-17; 258:4 to 262:20].  The plan administrator 
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testified that he looks only at the plan in place when participants are terminated. Id.  

ERISA § 203, however, demands that plan administrators consider prior vesting 

schedules.  ERISA § 203(c)(1)(A) & (B).  If there is an amendment to the plan that 

changes the vesting schedule participants with significant service are permitted to 

select the most favorable schedule yielding the highest nonforfeitable percentage.  

ERISA §§ 302(c)(8); 203(c)(1)(A) & (B); see also ERISA § 203(a)(3)(C).  Here 

the plan administrator testified he looked only at the latest amendment disregarding 

any intervening vesting schedules despite ERISA’s clear directive to the contrary.  

Id; see also [PEX 24].  Additionally, there was evidence the plan administrator 

ignored employment records that showed Mr. Gilley’s termination date was 

adjusted to September 27, 1982, reflecting ten years of vesting service under the 

prior vesting schedule (the 1976 amendment).  [R 101 at 206:16-21; 327:16 to 

355:25; PEX 16, 17; R 101 at 12:2 to 7].    

  A plan that discriminates against “non-HCEs” in favor of “HCEs” in the 

way in which participants vest risks its tax qualified status under Section 

411(a)(10)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code.  26 U.S.C. § 411(a)(10).  To avoid 

disqualification plan administrators generally automatically select the vesting 

schedule that yields the highest non-forfeitable percentage of accrued benefit. See 

26 C.F.R. § 1.401(a)(4)(11)(c); see also ERISA § 203(a)(3)(C).  Monsanto’s plan 

administrator testified, however, that termination records reflecting Mr. Gilley’s 
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vested status were not relevant and adamantly declared the only controlling factor 

is the amendment in place at termination despite ERISA’s requirements.  [R 101 at 

336:8 to 338:22].   

  There were also credibility issues with the plan administrator’s testimony.  

When asked by the Court if he [the plan administrator] gave a recommendation to 

the Committee regarding the administrative appeal he testified that all he did was 

to provide information when in fact the record reflected the plan administrator 

made a recommendation to the Committee to deny benefits under the 1981 

amendment.  [R 101 254:9-17; PEX 24].   Another example of a problem with 

credibility that the district court in the first instance observed was Monsanto’s 

position that the “elapsed time” method was used to determine credited service for 

vesting purposes prior to the 1981 amendment.  Gilley, 490 F.3d at 852.   The 

district court questioned the plan administrator as to why there was a need to 

exclude the counting of overtime if overtime was never considered under the plan 

in the first instance.3  [R 101 at 305:17 to 306:2].  The 1976 amendment utilized 

the general method of crediting service not the “elapsed time” method.  [PEX 2 at 

p. 39-41].  Upon further questioning the plan administrator testified that credited 

service prior to the 1981 amendment was estimated under the 1000 hour rule 
                                                 
3 Under the “elapsed time” method or the “continuous service” method a 
participant’s service is credited for vesting purposes from the first day of 
employment to his/her termination date.  This method was used prior to the 1976 
amendment. [PEX 1]. 
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assuming a 2080 standard hour year and this is what he called the “elapsed time” 

method.4  [R 101 at 361:3 to 352:22].  This Court has consistently held that the 

written plan controls and not oral representations of unambiguous plans such as 

those made by defendants.  Nachwalter v. Christie, 805 F.2d 956 (11th Cir. 1986).  

This evidence illustrates there was a litigation strategy in place to defend the 1981 

amendment as being more favorable to participants to support forfeiture.  

Collectively this testimony reveals a strategy to “manipulat[e] or improperly 

influenc[e] [the] benefits process in order to achieve a financially beneficial result” 

for the plan sponsor.  Doyle v. Liberty Life Assurance Company, No. 05-00133 

____ F.3d ____, * 8 (11 Cir. 2008).  The odds of defendants establishing precedent 

to secure forfeiture of other “working class” participants’ vested benefits were 

decidedly in the sponsor’s favor.  Based on all this evidence the district court in the 

first instance relying on Social Security records provided by Mr. Gilley found the 

decision to deny him his vested pension benefit was unreasonable because he had 

1000 hours of credited service in 1972 under a permissible equivalency and the 

plan administrator was making benefit decisions in the sponsor’s interest.  [R 116-

7].  The district court’s finding in the first instance of an unreasonable tainted 

decision and an award of “equitable relief” despite impliedly using the wrong 

standard of review did not create a clearly erroneous finding because in addition to 
                                                 
4 The plan administrator would later declare this was the “elapsed time” method 
employed prior to 1981.  
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a proven abuse of discretion ab initio there was additional evidence of substantive 

and procedural abuse and breach of fiduciary duty sufficient to strip the fiduciary 

of discretion.  Doyle, No. 05-00133 ____ F.3d at *14.   

 F. “New” Evidence After Gilley I 

  As discussed above the district court in the second instance, without 

considering any new evidence, found this Court’s decision stripped Mr. Gilley of 

standing to present evidence of breach of fiduciary duty, discrimination, and 

intentional interference with protected rights.  [R 194].  The combined effect of 

this Court’s first appellate decision coupled with the district court’s conclusion 

regarding standing is to render ERISA § 502(a)(2) and 502(a)(3) superfluous.   If 

the discretion afforded plan sponsors and their conflicted administrators is so broad 

as to permit the sponsor to determine who does or who does not have “standing” to 

bring claims to redress the “taking” of property then ERISA is illusory and 

unconstitutional making the protection of nonHCE employee pension benefits a 

farce contrary to the Supreme Court’s decisions in Varity and MetLife.   Varity, 

516 U.S. 489; MetLife, 554 U.S. at *7.     

  Because Monsanto insisted on a limited hearing at the time of the initial 

appeal there was no evidence in the record regarding the timing of the 1981 

amendment.  On remand Mr. Gilley as directed by this Court produced additional 

evidence of Monsanto’s clear abuse of discretion and breach of fiduciary duty 



 16

including undisputed evidence the 1981 amendment changing the vesting schedule 

was adopted under ERISA § 302(c)(8) after the plan year and given a retroactive 

effective date to January 1, 1981.  [R 167-24 § 8].  Accordingly, under ERISA § 

203(a)(3)(C) Mr. Gilley’s accrued benefit was not forfeitable, and under ERISA § 

203(c)(1)(A) & (B) he had the right to elect the highest nonforfeitable percentage, 

100 percent under the 1976 vesting schedule.  ERISA § 203. This was 

automatically done for Mr. Gilley by the plan administrator when the plant closed, 

and he was given a document reflecting his vested status and entitlement under the 

1976 amendment.  26 C.F.R. § 1.401(a)(4)(11)(c).  Additionally, Mr. Gilley’s 

termination date was adjusted to reflect ten years of credited service under the 

plan, but Monsanto’s plan administrator ignored these records.  [R 101 at 206:16-

21; 327:16 to 355:25; PEX 16, 17].    

  Monsanto does not report “working class” participants separated with a 

deferred vested benefit as required by the IRS for qualified plans as mentioned 

above.  IRS Pub 794; see also ERISA §§ 101-4.  When Monsanto closed the Sand 

Mountain plant, Monsanto’s plan administrator reported only twenty-eight 

exempt (mid-level managers HCEs) of a workforce of over 1,200 people and did 

not report a single “non-HCE” nonexempt “working class” participant with a 

deferred vested benefit.  [R 169-6].  Even nonexempt non-HCEs who are currently 

drawing their separated deferred vested benefit from Monsanto/Solutia were not 
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reported as required for qualified plans.  [R 167-5, 167-6, 167-7, 167-9; R 167-23, 

25, 27].  Because Monsanto did not report “working class” non-HCE participants 

with deferred vested benefits the plan administrator did not provide benefit 

statements, pay pension insurance premiums, or ensure minimum funding 

standards for the trust permitting the plan administrator to revisit eligibility to 

cause forfeiture at will.  Because non-HCEs went unreported, any benefit paid to a 

non-HCE is essentially paid from the sponsor’s general assets because the funding 

for the trust does not reflect the liability owed to non-HCEs.  This is how 

Monsanto profits from the denial of a single vested pension benefit based on 

demographics.  If Monsanto can establish precedent, as it did in Gilley I, it can 

deny all similarly situated non-HCEs their accrued vested benefit relieving 

Monsanto of the need to pay benefits out of its assets.  Parklane Hosiery Co., Inc. 

v. Shore, 439 U.S. 322 (1979); Heptinstall v. Monsanto Company, Inc. CV 06-

01564 etc. (defendants arguing seven additional plaintiffs were not entitled to their 

pension based on res judicata); Buce, 247 F.3d at 1138.   

   1. Records 

  This Court in Gilley I taking defendants factual and legal determinations as 

presumptively true found the district court erred in permitting a permissible 

equivalency provided by Mr. Gilley because there was no requirement to keep 

records prior to ERISA’s enactment.  Gilley, 490 F.3d at 855.  This Court said: 
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We have no doubt, however, that a plan cannot be forced to use an 
equivalency that is different from the one the plan chose simply 
because it or the company did not keep adequate records for ERISA 
purposes before there was any ERISA. The year we are talking about 
is 1972, and ERISA was not enacted until September of 1974 (with an 
effective date, for our purposes, of January 1, 1976, see 29 U.S.C. § 
1061(b)(2)). Only after the time for doing so had passed did the Plan 
and the company learn that it would be necessary to make and keep 
the records. Companies and pension plan managers are not required to 
be clairvoyant. 

 
Gilley, 490 F.3d at 857. 

First, Monsanto and pension plan managers knew when adopting the 1976 

amendment that the plan credited overtime hours requiring records to be kept.  

[PEX 2 at pp. 39-41].  Second, Mr. Gilley on remand produced testimony from a 

former employee who worked as a key punch operator in data processing entering 

overtime and time records at the Sand Mountain plant that Monsanto did keep time 

records in 1972 despite the plan administrator’s story to the contrary.  [R 167-4].  

Finally, Mr. Gilley presented evidence that all the documents from the Sand 

Mountain plant including but not limited to personnel files, time records, pension 

plan notifications etc. were transferred to a Solutia, Inc. (formerly Monsanto) plant 

in Decatur, Alabama in the 1980’s, and after the first appeal was initiated these 

documents were shredded.  [R 170 to 170-8]; see also Heptinstall v. Monsanto 

Company, Inc.  ERISA places a fiduciary duty on plan sponsors to keep and 

maintain records to protect rights and benefits of plan participants that cannot be 

conveniently ignored to avoid liability.  ERISA § 209(a)(1); see also Combs, 764 
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F.2d at 822-3 (This Court recognizing a duty to maintain records as being essential 

to the underlying policy of ERISA “to . . . protect the interests [especially vested 

interest] of participants in employee benefit plans”).  Pursuant to MetLife and 

Varity this Court must revisit its earlier decision in Gilley I finding under a 

arbitrary and capricious standard that Mr. Gilley did not have a claim for 

“equitable relief” under ERISA § 502(a)(3) due to an abuse of discretion.   This 

Court should also consider Monsanto’s position “that there were no time records 

for 1972” in light evidence that records were shredded after the first appeal.  The 

proper standard of review as required by MetLife and Varity is the de novo 

standard affording defendants’ factual and legal representations with no deference.   

See Cases cited in initial Brief.   

G. Mr. Gilley Has Standing 

   There is more than ample evidence of an abuse of discretion in the record 

both before and after Gilley I to strip the fiduciary of all discretion in light of 

MetLife.  Monsanto in its profit incentive violated ERISA and breached its 

fiduciary duty to act in the interest of all plan participants and abused its discretion 

by operating an alleged qualified plan as a de facto “top-hat” plan by 

discriminatorily causing forfeiture of non-HCEs’ accrued vested benefit in the 

sponsor’s interest.  Doyle, No. 05-00133 at * 15.  Mr. Gilley has proven the benefit 

decision was tainted by self-interest due to the conflict of interest and has also 
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proved his claim for individual, representative and derivative relief on behalf of the 

plan and all other similarly situated participants due to Monsanto’s violation of 

ERISA §§ 204(g), 510, 409 under ERISA §§ 502(a)(2) and 502(a)(3).  Id.  The 

district court in the second instance had jurisdiction because “but for” Monsanto’s 

abuse of discretion and breach of fiduciary duty Mr. Gilley and all other similarly 

situated “working class” participants would be receiving their separated deferred 

vested benefit under the 1976 vesting schedule at retirement.  Lanfear v. Home 

Depot, Inc., ___ F.3d. ____, 2008 WL 2916390 (11th Cir. 07/31/2008).  Mr. Gilley 

has gone beyond what MetLife requires and has actually proven the conflict of 

interest was the only motivating force driving the plan administrator’s decision to 

deny vested pension benefits.  Doyle, No. 05-00133 at * 22 citing MetLife, 554 

U.S. (Scalia, J., dissenting).   

CONCLUSION 

Mr. Gilley and his counsel have also gone beyond the standard for class 

certification by proving the merits of the claims and proving they are adequate 

representatives for the class.  Defendants by bringing a defense in collateral 

litigation based on res judicata grounds have ipso facto admitted there are common 

issues of fact and law.  The class and the plan as well as a whole are entitled to 

“equitable relief”.  This Court should rule on all claims and remand to the district 

court to redress injuries resulting from defendants’ severe violation of ERISA.  Mr. 
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Gilley individually and on behalf of the plan and the class is entitled to all 

appropriate relief pursuant to ERISA §§ 502(a)(2) & (3) including removal of the 

fiduciary plus an appropriate attorney’s fee.        

 

                  Respectfully Submitted, 

 

         /s/ Elisa Smith Rives 
         ___________________ 
         Elisa Smith Rives 
         Elisa S. Rives LLC 
         2208 Ringold Street, Ste 103 
         Guntersville, AL 35976 
         (256) 582-3559 
 
         Attorney for Appellant 
 
 
Date: September 26, 2008 
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